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’ PACIFIC ANDES INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED



CORPORATE PROFILE AND CORPORATE OBJECTIVE

Corporate Profile

Corporate Objective

Pacific Andes International Holdings
Limited supplying frozen food products
since 1986. The Company now sources,
processes and distributes a diverse range
of frozen food products to 36 countries
worldwide covering the People's Republic
of China, North and South America,
Europe, Africa and Asia. Our client base
ranges from wholesalers, retailers,
processors, reprocessors and institutional

customers.

The Company was listed on the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange in 1994,
headquartered in Hong Kong with offices
in the PRC, Singapore, Russia and North
America. In 1996 the Group's resource
development and trading division, Pacific
Andes (Holdings) Limited, was separately
listed on the Singapore Exchange
Securities Trading Limited.

Our goal is to be a vertically integrated
global food company that sources,
produces, processes, and distributes its
nutritious frozen food products through a
highly diversified distribution network to
meet the needs of value-orientated and
health conscious consumers around the
world.
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Ng Swee Hong, Chairman
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Teh Hong Eng
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Ng Joo Puay, Frank

Ng Puay Yee

Cheng Nai Ming

Non-Executive
Kwok Lam Kwong, Larry
Lew V Robert

Audit Committee
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Cheng Nai Ming
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Bank of China
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

Registered Office

Cedar House
41 Cedar Avenue
Hamilton HM12 Bermuda

Principal Office

Rooms 3201-3215

Hong Keng Plaza

188 Connaught Road West
Hong Kong

Principal Registrars & Transfer Office
in Bermuda

The Bank of Bermuda Limited
6 Front Street

Hamilton HM11

Bermuda

Branch Registrars & Transfer Office
in Hong Kong

Secretaries Limited

GIF

BEA Harbour View Centre
56 Gloucaster Road
Wanchai
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MANAGING DIRECTOR'S STATEMENT AND ANALYSIS

I'am pleased to report healthy operational and financial results for Pacific Andes International Holdings Limited
("Pacific Andes” or the "Company”) and its subsidiaries (the "Group") for the year ended 31 March 2003,

Financial Highlights

HK$ million
5,000

Year ended 31 March

Operating Profit

HK$ million
250

Year ended 31 March

Turnover

During FY2003, the Group recorded an increase of 8.5%
in turnover to HK$3.8 billion. The growth was primarily
attributable to the increased demand for frozen seafood
products from our existing markets.

Profit Attributable to Shareholders

HK$ million
100

Year ended 31 March

During FY2003, the Group recorded improved profitability. Operating profit increased by 3.0% to HK$196 million.
Profit attributable to shareholders grew from HK$80,128,000 in FY2002, to HK$94,351,000 in FY2003, representing

an increase of 17.8%.

.




MANAGING DIRECTOR’'S STATEMENT AND ANALYSIS

Gross Profit Margin Net Profit Margin

Year ended 31 March Year ended 31 March

The gross profit margin was down from 10.21% in 2002, to 9.78% in 2003. This was due to the lower interest rate
environment, which enabled the Group to adjust its selling prices, passing the benefits of interest saving to our
customers. Nevertheless, the net profit margin continued to grow from 2.99% to 3.20%, reflecting the benefits
derived from our vertical integrated business operation and the saving in interest expenses.

HK cents M

e Earnings per Share
Reflecting our higher profitability, earnings per share
for the year were HK 13.6 cents compared to HK 12.2
cents in 2002, an increase of 11.6%.

Year ended 31 March




HK$ mitlion
1,000

At 31 March

Year ended 31 March
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MANAGING DIRECTOR'S STATEMENT AND ANALYSIS

Shareholders' Fund

Shareholders' fund increased 13.13% to HK$784
milfion.

Return on Shareholders' Fund

Benefiting from the improved profitability, the return
on shareholders’ fund improved from last year's
11.56%, to 12.03% this year.

Net Asset per Share

Net asset per share increased 3.8% to HK$1.10.




MANAGING DIRECTOR'S STATEMENT AND ANALYSIS

Times

3.0

25

Year ended 31 March

Year ended 31 March

Interest Cover

As the Group's operating margin improved, interest
cover improved to 2.70 times, compared to last year's
2.30 times.

Stock Turnover

Stock turnover decreased from 92 days to 72 days.
During FY2002, there was an import ban of animal-
origin products from the PRC into the EU, as well as
the delay and shortening in the fishing season of one
of the Group's core species, Alaskan pollock, due to the
reduction of fishing quota by the Russian government.
This resulted in the temporary increase in inventory
holdings. As the import ban has now been lifted and
the Alaskan pollock fishing quota has increased this
year, our inventory holdings have been reduced by
14.7% to HK$685 million.

Debtor Turnover

The debtor turnover period was 47 days, remaining in
line with the 48 days recorded last year.




MANAGING DIRECTOR'’S STATEMENT AND ANALYSIS

Total Borrowings Debt-to-Equity Ratio

HKS million
1,000 g4

At 31 March

At 31 March

As of 31 March 2003, total borrowings were reduced by 16%, from HK$918 million in 2002, to HK$775 million in
2003. Net debt to shareholders' equity ratio was reduced from 87% in 2002, to 53% in 2003. As of 31 March
2003, cash on hand increased to HK$222 million, compared to HK$100 million in 2002. This strengthened liquidity
position and the financial resources of the Group provides a strong foundation for further expansion. Net debt
represents interest-bearing borrowings less discounting advances drawn on trade receivables with insurance
coverage and cash and deposits with financial institutions. Equity comprises shareholders’ funds and minority
Interests.

Appropriations

In line with the Group's dividend policy, the board of directors proposes to distribute one-third of the Group's net
profit for payment to shareholders as dividends once a year. As such, a final dividend of HK4.5 cents per ordinary
share has been proposed to shareholders.

Review of Business

The volatile and uncertain business environment in FY2003 created many challenges for the Group. Changing
government policies and the rising credit risks caused by the economic slow down put to test the Group's
capabilities and resilience. The continued slowing of the global economy hit our Western European market and
North American market. The rising unemployment in Western Europe and the introduction of the Euro led to
widespread uncertainty among consumers in many European countries. The increase in oil prices also led to an
increase in the Group's freight cost by 20% in general.

The import ban on all animal-origin products from the PRC by the EU affected our sales to Western Europe in the
first half of FY2003. During the ban period, the PRC government implemented a series of measures to ensure food
safety, including inspecting every processing factory. Although the import ban was lifted in July 2002, the Group's
export to the EU was only fully resumed by October 2002.
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Review of Business — continued

Towards the second half of FY2003, the Group saw rapid legislative and regulatory changes in the PRC, particularly
pertaining to the import of foodstuffs into the country. Whereas there were no restrictions in the past, the PRC
authorities tightened their regulations to ensure the quality and traceability of imported foodstuffs. As at the end
of 2002, the purchase of imported fish now requires an import permit to be issued by the Commodity Inspection
and Quarantine Bureau ("CIQ") before purchase orders can be issued to suppliers. The introduction of these changes
meant our sales to the PRC market were temporarily delayed as our customers tock more time to get the necessary
import permits.

Despite the difficult business conditions during the year, the overall frozen seafood consumption in our markets
continued to increase. This is in part due to our broader sales strategy, as well as our policy to continue to
enhance our processing capabilities. Pacific Andes not only continued its good performance, but we also have a
stronger financial position,

Operations Review

Market Analysis

The PRC remains the Group's main revenue source, accounting for 50% of the Group's total sales mix for the year.
The growing trend of improving living standards and pursuing better quality and nutritious food products in the
PRC, has continued to provide a robust demand for our diversified seafood products. Sales in the PRC market
increased 6.29% to HK$1.93 billion, against HK$1.82 billion in FY2002.

The introduction of sales through bonded warehouses in November 2001 effectively shortened delivery lead-times
and expanded the elasticity and flexibility of our operations. At the same time, it also enabled us to expand our
customer base by allowing us to encompass buyers who purchase on a smaller scale. However, the introduction of
these innovative distribution arrangements created a temporary setback in our PRC sales. The Group posted a
decline in sales of 8.1% in the first half of FY2003 compared to the same period FY2002. This was attributable to
the change in customers' purchasing habits which shifted from advanced orders and bulk-buying patterns, to just-
in-time purchases. By the second half of FY2003, as purchasing schedules adjusted and normalised, the Group saw
corresponding increase in our sales activities.

By the end of 2002, the PRC government tightened the import permit issuance procedures for frozen fish. As a
result, our customers now have to apply for the import permit before any purchase contracts can be entered into.
This meant our sales to the PRC market were delayed as our customers took more time to get the necessary import
documents. Nevertheless, our distribution arrangements and the development of a broader customer base helped
improve our sales figures. Pleasingly, overall, sales to the PRC increased 15% from HK$1.14 billion in the second
half of FY2002, to HK$1.28 billion in the second half of FY2003.

Sales to Western Europe showed a dramatic and remarkable recovery following the repeal of the import ban
imposed by the European Commission on products of animal-origin intended for human or animal consumption
that had derived from the PRC. After the lifting of the ban in July 2002, sales to Western Europe soared by 11009,
from HK$237.5 million in the second half of FY2002, to HK$499.4 million in the second half of FY2003. As a
result, sales during FY2003 showed an increase of 20.5% from HK$656.8 million in FY2002, to HK$791.2 million.
This accounted for 20.6% of total sales.
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Operations Review - continued
Market Analysis - continued

North America continued to be a strong market for the Group, accounting for 23.5% of total sales. During FY2003,
sales increased by 4.4%, from HK$867.8 million in FY2002, to HK$905.8 million. Due to the weakened economy, as
well as an increase in bankruptcy cases in the US, the Group took extra precautions to carefully deal with its
customers, even though all sales to the US have been covered by credit insurance. To minimise risk, as well as to
satisfy a more robust demand in our Western Europe market, we shifted some of our sales distribution of fillets
and portion destined for North America to Europe. Reflecting these changes, sales to North America in the second
half of FY2003 therefore, decreased to HK$430 million, compared to HK$651 million in the second half of FY2002.

Sales to Japan showed a steady growth of 11.6% from HK$154.3 million in FY2002, to HK$172.3 million in
FY2003. Although not a significant market for the Group, accounting for 4.5% of total sales, Japan remains a
steadily developing market year-on-year.

Product Analysis
Seafood Division

The seafood division of Pacific Andes has matured to become one of the world's leading processor and supplier's of
frozen seafood. With an integrated, sophisticated operation, we are able to source, process and distribute seafood
products globally. »

Trading

During FY2003, the Group sold approximately 168,000 metric tonnes of seafood products. Whilst this was a
decrease in volume from the 198,000 metric tones handled in FY2002, sales vaiue increased by 3.6% to HK$2.11
billion. Frozen fish, which primarily sold to the PRC market, remained the largest contributor to the Group's
turnover, accounting for 55% of total sales.

The Group initially saw a decrease in sales of 1.4% in the first half of FY2003 compared to the same period in
FY2002. This was due to the decline in sales to the PRC market because of the temporary adjustment in orders
from customers. By the second half of the year, sales had returned to normal levels as purchasing schedules
became adjusted.

As the PRC government tightened the import permit issuance procedure in December 2002, this prolonged the

pracess for our customers to obtain their import licenses. As a result, our sales to PRC customers were delayed.
Despite of these two situations, an increase in revenue was achieved because of an increase in sales of higher

value products.

Processing

Sales of fillets and portions increased by 15.9%, from HK$1.45 billion in FY2002, to HK$1.69 billion in FY2003.
During the first half of FY2003, sales of fillets and portions increased by 4.7% to HK$678 million. In the second
half of FY2003, sales of fillets and portions increased by 24.9% to HK$1,007 million. This surge in sales in the
second half of FY2003 was due to the repeal of the ban imposed by the European Union Commission, which
allowed us to resume shipments to Western Europe. The strang growth in sales in general is attributed to the
continual relocation of fillet and portion processing from different parts of the world to the PRC where the
processing environment is more competitive than most other locations.
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Operations Review — continued

Product Analysis - continued
Processing - continued

The high demand for fillets and portions during FY2003 meant that all of our processing factories were working at
high capacity. During FY2003, the Group sold 75,000 metric tonnes of fillets and portions, an increase of 7.2%, as
compared to 70,000 metric tonnes in FY2002.

Vegetable and Plantation Division

Sale of vegetables recorded a turnover of HK$40 million, representing an increase of 14.5% over FY2002. The
Western European market has been key in the development of the vegetable business, accounting for 70% of total
sales. The most popular products are spinach, broccoli and onions. These products require specialist skilled labour
which is employed at low-cost in the PRC. Although vegetable sales remain insignificant by comparison to the
Group's seafood business, we are confident that, with the continued expansion in the scale of our operations, this
business segment will steadily contribute to our future growth.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

As of 31 March 2003, total bank borrowings were reduced by 16%, from HK$918 million in 2002, to HK$775
million in 2003. Net debt to shareholders' equity ratio was reduced from 87% in FY2002, to 53% in FY2003. As of
31 March 2003, cash on hand increased 121% to HK$222 million. Qur strengthened liguidity position and the
financial resources of the Group provide a strong foundation for further expansion.

The Group's exposure to currency risk is minimal, as the Group does not maintain a significant open position in
any foreign currency at any time. The Group actively protects its foreign currency vulnerabilities through natural
hedges, forward contracts and options.

As at 31 March 2003, the Group has pledged land and buildings and investment properties with aggregate carrying
values of approximately HK$162 million and HK$18 million respectively, as collateral for property mortgage loans
granted to the Group by certain banks.

Trade receivables with credit insurance coverage of HK$7 million were pledged as security for the receivable
discounting facilities obtained from banks.

In addition, shares in certain subsidiaries were pledged as securities for the revelving inventory financing obtained
from banks.

As at 31 March 2003, bills discounted with recourse were HK$421 million.

Empioyees and Remuneration

As at 31 March 2003, the Group had a total number of approximately 5,000 employees.

The Group recognises the importance of its employees who contribute to the business and offers remuneration
packages in line with industry standards. These are subject to annual review. Bonuses may be awarded to
employees based on individual performance, and the Group's performance. Other staff benefits include medical
allowance and mandatory provident fund. The Company and its non-wholly owned subsidiary, Pacific Andes

{Holdings) Limited, each has an employees' share option scheme to allow the granting of share options to selected
eligible employees depending on their contribution to the company.
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Outlook

Pacific Andes' strong commitment to quality and to operational effectiveness will continue to enhance our
competitive advantage in the coming year. We will continue to implement new business strategies, improve our
iogistics service and rationalize our operational costs in a concerted effort towards enhancing our profit margins.
At the same time, we will continue to strengthen our relationships and forge closer ties with both our customers
and our suppliers. The consistency of delivery and the quality of our seafood and vegetable products have allowed
us to secure broad market share around the world. We are now considered one of the leading frozen food suppliers
distributing from the PRC to North America, Western Europe, Japan and other foreign markets, as well as
distributing within the PRC.

Food Safety

To underpin our expansion strategies, the Group recently established a sophisticated trace residue analysis
laboratory in the PRC. This facility, unigue in China, is equipped with the most advanced analytical instruments. [t
is using internationally accredited methods developed in conjunction with the Central Science Laboratory (“CSL"), a
United Kingdom government agency. The facility has exclusive rights in China to utilise CSL's wealth of experience.
CSL is committed to providing the latest updates of analytical methods and technical procedures. Consequently, the
laboratory will have access to the latest techniques thereby ensuring our products are able to conform to any
foreseeable international legislation. To capitalise on this unique resource in China, the Group operates services for
other food manufacturers so that they can also test their products at the centre.

Sourcing

The PRC will remain @ major growth driver for Pacific Andes. Growing GDP per capita and improved living
standards means consumers are seeking an increase in the quality of products they purchase. In order to continue
to meet demand, we will be developing further integration in our sourcing activities. We are currently evaluating
the feasibility of participation in fishing activities in different places in the world.

Processing

With growing demands from our customers, the Group will increase its processing capacity by constructing a new
plant. The new processing facility is currently undergoing construction and is expected to commence operations by
late 2004. This centre will boost our productivity, enhance our capacity, and provide us with further flexibility in
producing value-added products. The Group will also increase the processing volume of value-added products and
expand the variety of the product types. At the same time, we plan to increase the extent of our processing
through processing agreements within the PRC. The Group has increased the number of its processing factories
from 17 to 20 since April 2003. With these improved operational efficiencies our position in the global market
piace will be further strengthened.
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QOutlook - continued

Marketing

The various Just-in-Time ("JiT") programmes implemented by the Group for customers in the EU and North America
have proved to provide better logistic services to them. Most importantly, the JIT programmes foster a close
companion relationship with our customers. We plan to implement more JIT programmes in the coming vear.

Vegetables

From April 2003, the Group has secured greater control on its sources of vegetable raw material by increasing the
scale of contract farming in China. With its vegetable products increasingly finding favour with customers all over
the Northern Hemisphere, the Group is evaluating the possibility of moving its vegetable processing operation to a
larger facility.

Financing

The Group lowerad the net debt to equity ratio during this year. We intend to implement new inventory and
control measures in order to shorten the average inventory-holding period for fillets and portions thereby reducing
short-term bank borrowings. The management is committed to strengthening the liquidity of the Group to meet its
operational and investment needs.

Appreciation

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to thank all our customers, suppliers, our bankers,
business partners, shareholders and employees for their support during the year. it is with your commitment and
help that Pacific Andes is able to deliver our performance today. To all the fishermen with whom we work, we
would like to thank you for all your endurance and dedication in ensuring that Pacific Andes will always deliver
quality- fish and seafood products to consumers globally.

Reflecting retrospectively on the performance of the Group over the years, we are proud to say that we have
consistently delivered the promises that we have made to our shareholders. These include ensuring that Pacific
Andes remains a profitable business and ensuring a constant annual dividend payout to our shareholders. With the
exception of the 1999 financial year when our business was affected by external factors beyond our control, the
Group has succeeded in achieving double-digit growth in our net profits year after year and consistently rewarded
our shareholders with dividend payout that correspond to the Group's performance. While the Group's performance
this year has been good especially in consideration of the volatile operating conditions, we are not stopping here.
The new financial year will bring new challenges and, as in the past, we will be consistently looking for ways to
deliver and grow our shareholders' value in Pacific Andes.

Very truly yours,

Ng Joo Siang
Managing Director

17 July 2003




DIRECTORS' PROFILES

Executive Directors

Mr. Ng Swee Hong, 68, is the founder and chairman of the Company. Mr. Ng advises on overall policy of the
Group and has over 40 years experience in the trading of commodities and other products, including more than
20 years experience in the seafood business.

Mr. Ng Joo Siang, 44, is the managing director of the Company responsible for overall corperate policy making,
strategic planning, development, investment and management of the Group. Mr. Ng graduated from Louisiana State
University, Baton Rouge, Louisiana in the U.S., majoring in international trade and finance, and has over 20 years
experience in the trading of seafood products. Prior to joining the Company in 1986, Mr. Ng was involved in the
ship agency business and the chartering and operation of ocean-going vessels calling at various Asian ports.

Madam Teh Hong Eng, 67, is the executive director of the Company responsible for general administration and
strategic planning. She joined the Group in 1986 and has over 26 years experience in administration and financial
investment.

Mr. Ng Joo Kwee, 42, is the executive director of the Company responsible for all production of frozen seafood
and vegetable products, in the PRC. Mr. Ng studied in the U.S. at Southeastern Louisiana University in Hammond,
Louisiana. From 1983 to 1983, Mr. Ng was president of a fish trading company in Taiwan. In 1989, Mr. Ng joined
the Group as general manager of PRC operations, responsible for daily operations, trading activities and the
sourcing of frozen seafood products from South America, India, the PRC and Russia. In 1994, Mr. Ng resigned from
the Company, but rejoined in March 1996.

Mr. Ng Joo Puay, Frank, 40, is the executive director of the Company. He is responsible for international sales
and marketing of the Group's frozen seafood products outside the PRC. Mr. Ng graduated from Loyola University in
New Orleans, Louisiana, in the U.S., majoring in business administration. He has over 16 years experience in the
seafood trading business. Prior to joining the Company in 1987, Mr. Ng was the trading manager of a fish trading
company in Taiwan for three years.

Ms. Ng Puay Yee, Jessie, 30, is the executive director of the Company. She is responsible for sourcing frozen
seafood products for sale in the PRC market. She is also responsible for the international sales and marketing of
frozen seafood products to markets other than the PRC. Ms. Ng graduated from Indiana University at Bloomington,
USA. She joined the Group in 1995.

Mr. Cheng Nai Ming, 39, is finance director and company secretary for the Group. He is responsible for corporate
finance as well as overall financial management and planning. Mr. Cheng graduated from the University of Hong
Kong majoring in social science and is an associate member of the Hong Kong Society of Accountants. Prior to
joining the Company in early 1994, Mr. Cheng was with an international accounting firm in Hong Kong for over

6 vyears.
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Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Kwok Lam Kwong, Larry, J.P., 47, is a solicitor practising in Hong Kong, and is currently the Managing
Partner of Kwok and Yih. Mr. Kwok is also qualified to practice in Australia, England and Singapore. He is a fellow
of the Hong Kong Scciety of Accountants and a fellow of CPA Australia. Mr. Kwok graduated from the University
of Sydney, Australia, with a Bachelor's Degree in economics {major in accounting and economics) and law, and a
Master's Degree in law.

Mr. Kwok is currently the Vice-Chairman of the Consumer Council, a member of the Hospital Governing Committee
of Princess Margaret Hospital, a member of the Traffic Accident Victims Assistance Advisory Committee and a
member of the Trade and Industry Advisory Board in Hong Kong. He is also 2 member of the Political Consultative
Committee of Guangxi in the People’s Republic of China.

Mr. Lew V Robert, 47, is a certified public accountant in Hong Kong. He graduated from the University of British
Columbia in Canada in 1979. He has been an associate member of the Hong Kong Society of Accountants since
1986, and a member of the Alberta Institute of Chartered Accountants since 1982. Previously, Mr. Lew worked for
Thorne Riddell in both Calgary and Ottawa from 1980 to 1986, and is currently a practising director of BKR Lew &
Barr Limited, a certified public accounting corporation.




REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The directors present their annual report and the audited financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2003.
Principal Activities

The Company acts as an investment holding company and provides corporate management services to group
companies. Its subsidiaries are principally engaged in global sourcing, processing on shore and international
distribution of a variety of frozen seafood products, fuel-trading-at-sea, and the provision of shipping and agency

services.

An analysis of the Group's turnover and contribution to operating profit for each of its principal activities and
geographical markets is set out in note 4 to the financial statements.

Customers and Suppliers

The five largest customers of the Group together accounted for approximately 37.4% of the Group's turnover, with
the largest customer accounting for 11.8%. The five largest suppliers of the Group together accounted for
approximately 34.4% of the Group's total purchases, with the largest supplier accounting for 13.4%.

At no time during the year did a director, an associate of a director or a shareholder of the Company which, to

the knowledge of the directors of the Company owns more than 5% of the Company's share capital, have an
interest in any of the Group's five largest customers or suppliers.

Results and Appropriations

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2003 are set out in the consolidated income statement on
page 24.

The directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK4.5 cents per share to the shareholders whose

names appear on the Register of Members of the Company at the close of business on 17 September 2003
amounting to HK$31,999,000 and the retention of the remaining profit for the year of HK$62,352,000.

Property, Plant and Equipment

During the year, the Group spent approximately HK$17,500,000 on property, plant and equipment principally for
the purpose of expansion of production capacity for the factories situated in the People's Republic of China (the
AIPRCII].

Details of these and other movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group are set out in note 14 to
the financial statements. :

Investment Properties

The Group has revalued its investment properties at 31 March 2003,

Details of movements in investment properties of the Group are set out in note 15 to the financial statements.
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Subsidiaries and Associates

Details of the Company's principal subsidiaries and the Group's principal associates at 31 March 2003 are set out
in notes 42 and 43 to the financial statements respectively.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the Company's Listed Shares

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company's listed shares
during the year.

Share Capital, Share Options and Warrants

Details of movements in the share capital, share options and warrants are set out in notes 31, 32 and 33 to the
financial statements respectively.

Pre-emptive Rights
There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company's bye-laws or the laws in Bermuda.

Borrowings
Details of bank borrowings of the Group are set out in note 28 to the financial statements.

No interest was capitalised by the Group during the year.

Directors
The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this report are:

Executive directors:

Ng Swee Hong (Chairman)

Ng Joo Siang (Managing Director)
Teh Hong Eng

Ng Joo Kwee

Ng Joo Puay, Frank

Ng Puay Yee

Cheng Nai Ming

Independent non-executive directors:
Lew V Robert
Kwok Lam Kwong, Larry

In accordance with the provisions of the Company's bye-laws, Teh Hong Eng, Lew V Robert and Kwok Lam Kwong,
Larry retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election. All remaining directors continue in office.

The term of office for each non-executive director is the period up to his retirement by rotation in accordance
with the Company's bye-laws.
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Directors' Service Contracts

Each of Ng Joo Siang, Teh Hong Eng, Ng Joo Kwee, Ng Joo Puay, Frank and Cheng Nai Ming has entered into a
service agreement with a Company's subsidiary. These service agreements shall be valid unless terminated for cause
or by either party giving at least one year's written notice, (other than the service agreement of Cheng Nai Ming
which requires at least six months' written notice).

Other than as disclosed above, none of the directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting has a service contract which is not determinable by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation {other than statutory compensation).

Directors’' and Chief Executive's Interests
(i) Shares

At 31 March 2003, the interests of the directors and their associates, within the meaning of the Securities
(Disclosure of interests) Ordinance of Hong Kong (the "SDI Ordinance”), in the share capital of the
Company, as recorded in the register maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 29 of the SDI
Ordinance were as follows:

Number of ordinary shares and warrants held

Personal Family Corporgte
Name of directors interests interests interests

Ng Swee Hong
- shares -
- warrants -

375,487,865 (note a)
75,097,573 [(note q)

Teh Hong Eng

- shares 10,000,000 - -

- warrants 2,000,000 - -
Ng Joo Siang

- shares 16,000,000 422,000 (note b) -

- warrants 3,200,000 84,400 (note b) -
Ng Joo Kwee

- shares 10,000,000 - -

- warrants 2,000,000 - -
Ng Joo Puay

- shares 8,000,000 - -

- warrants 1,600,000 - -
Ng Puay Yee

- shares 2,480,000 - -

- warrants 496,000 - -
Cheng Nai Ming

- shares 1,454,400 - -

- warrants 290,880 - -
Notes:
(a) These shares are registered in the name of N.S. Hong Investment (BVI) Limited and Mr. Ng Swee Hong is deemed

to be interested in these shares by virtue of the fact that N.S. Hong Investment (BVI) Limited, a corporation, is

accustomed to act in accordance with his direction.

(b) These shares are held under the name of the spouse of Ng Joo Siang.
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Directors’ and Chief Executive's Interests = Continued
{ii)  Share option scheme
Particulars of the share option scheme are set out in note 32 to the financial statements.

The following table discloses directors’ personal interests and employees' interest in share options to
subscribe for shares in the Company:

Number of share options held

Subscription Outstunding Exercised Lapsed Qutstonding
Period during which price Dote of at during during at
option ore exercisoble per shore gront 1.4.2002 the year the yeor 31.3.2003
HKS
Category 1: Directors

Teh Hong Eng 21.8.2000 to 20.8.2005 0.3336 21.2.2000 10,000,000 (10,000,000} - -
Ng Joo Siang 21.8.2000 to 20.8.2005 0.3336 21.2.2000 16,000,000 {16,000,000) - -
Ng Joo Kwee 21.8.2000 to 20.8.2005 0.3336 21.2.2000 10,000,000 (10,000,000) - -
Ng Joo Puay, Frank 21.8.2000 to 20.8.2005 0.3336 21.2.2000 8,000,000 (8,000,000} - -
Ng Puay Yze 11.7.1999 to 10.7.2004 1.1168 10.7.1997 600,000 - - 600,000
21.2.2002 to 20.2.2007 0.3336 21.2.2000 2,000,000 (2,000,000) - -
Cheng Nai Ming 25.10.1998 to 24.10.2003 09440  24.10.1996 2,000,000 - - 2,000,000
21.8.2000 to 20.8.2005 0.3336 21.2.2000 4,000,000 - - 4,000,000

Total number of share options
held by directors 52,600,000 (46,000,000) - 6,600,000

Category 2: Employees  25.10.1997 to 24.10.2002 09440  24.10.1996 100,000 (100,000} -
25.10.1998 to 24.10.2003 0.9440  24.10.1996 3,250,000 (2,650,000} - 600,000
25.10.1999 to 24.10.2004 0.9440  24.10.1996 300,000 {300,000) - -
25.10.2000 to 24.10.2005 0.9440  24.10.1996 400,000 (400,000) - -
21.2.2001 to 20.2.2006 0.3336 2122000 4,000,000 (4,000,000) - -
21.2.2002 to 20.2.2007 0.3336 21.2.2000 600,000 (600,000) - -

Total number of share aptions
held by employees 8,650,000 (7,950,000)  (100,000) 600,000

Total number of share options granted 61,250,000 (53,950,000)  (100,000) 7,200,000

No share option was granted by the Company during the year.

Other than as disclosed above, none of the directors or chief executives or their respective associates had
any perscnal, family, corporate or other interests in any securities of the Company or any of its associated
corporations as defined in the SDI Ordinance, and none of the directors or chief executives or their
respective spouses or children under the age of 18 had any right to subscribe for securities of the Company,
or had exercised any such right during the year.
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Arrangements to Purchase Shares or Debentures

Other than as disclosed above, at no time during the year was the Company or its holding company or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

Directors' Interest in Contracts of Significance

Save as disclosed in note 41 to the financial statements, no contract of significance to which the Company or its
holding company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the Company had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at-any time during the year,

Substantial Shareholders

Other than the interests disclosed above in respect of certain directors, the register of substantial shareholders
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 16(1) of the SDI Ordinance discloses no person as having an
interest of 10% or more in the issued share capital of the Company as at 31 March 2003.

Other than as disclosed above, the Company has not been notified of any other interests representing 10% or more
of the Company's issued share capital as at 31 March 2003.

Connected Transactions
The Group had also entered into the following transactions with National Fish & Seafood Inc. ("NFS") and its

subsidiary, in which the Group has a 60% attributable interest, and Pacific Andes (Holdings) Limited ("PAH") and
its subsidiaries in which the Group has a 63% attributable interest:

HK$ 000
Dividend paid to NFS 494
Sales of frozen seafood to NFS and its subsidiary - 5,760
Purchases of frozen seafood from NFS and its subsidiary 16,908
Interest income received from NFS and its subsidiary 163
Administrative expenses paid to PAH and its subsidiaries 2,528
Administrative income received from PAH and its subsidiaries 7,342
Interest income received from PAH and its subsidiaries 180

The interest income was calculated at interest rates ranging from 1.70% to 5.42% per annum on the outstanding
amounts due fram PAH and its subsidiaries and outstanding amounts due from NFS and its subsidiary respectively.
The administrative income received from and administrative expenses paid to PAH and its subsidiaries were
calculated in accordance with the management agreement signed on 3 September 1996 upon the listing of the
shares of PAH on Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited. Sales of frozen seafood were carried out at
market price or, where no market price was available, at cost plus a percentage profit mark-up. These transactions
were in the ordinary and usual course of business.

During the year, the Company executed guarantees to certain banks in respect of banking facilities in the amount
of HK$132,834,000 granted to NFS and its subsidiary and in the amount of HK$333,500,000 to PAH and its
subsidiaries. The guarantees given by the Company were in the ordinary and usual course of business.

Besides, PAH and its subsidiaries executed guarantees to certain banks in respect of banking facilities in the
amount of HK$266,975,000 granted to the Group and the Company.
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Donations

During the year, the Group made charitable and other donations amounting to HK$934,000.

Corporate Governance

The Company has complied throughout the year ended 31 March 2003 with the Code of Best Practice as set out in
Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Code of Best Practice”) except that its non-executive directors are not appointed for a specific terms. Pursuant to
the bye-laws of the Company, the directors, including non-executive directors of the Company will retire by
rotation on an average of every three years and their appointments will be reviewed when they are due for re-
election which, in the opinion of the Company, meets the same objective as the guidelines, set out in the Code of
Best Practice.

Auditors

A resolution will be submitted to the annual general meeting of the Company to re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu as auditors of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Ng Joo Siang
Managing Director

17 July 2003




REPORT OF THE AUDITORS

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF PACIFIC ANDES INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
fincorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the financial statements on pages 24 to 64 which have been prepared in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong.

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

The Company's directors are responsible for the preparation of financial statements which give a true and fair
view. In preparing financial statements which give a true and fair view it is fundamental that appropriate
accounting policies are selected and applied consistently.

It is our responsibility to form an independent opinion, based on our audit, on those statements and to report our
opinion to you.

Basis of opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Statements of Auditing Standards issued by the Hong Kong Society of
Accountants. An audit includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. It also includes an assessment of the significant estimates and judgments made by the
directors in the preparation of the financial statements, and of whether the accounting policies are appropriate to
the circumstances of the Company and the Group, consistently applied and adequately disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information and explanations which we considered
necessary in order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance as to whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement. In forming our opinion we also evafuated the overall adequacy of
the presentation of information in the financial statements. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis
for our opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and the
Group as at 31 March 2003 and of the profit and cash flows of the Group for the year then ended and have been
properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hang Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountonts
17 July 2003




CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

For the year ended 31 March 2003

Notes

TURNOVER 4
COST OF SALES

GROSS PROFIT

OTHER OPERATING INCOME 5
SELLING AND DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES 6
PROFIT FROM OPERATIONS 7
FINANCE COSTS 8

SHARE OF RESULTS OF ASSQCIATES

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION
TAXATION 10

PROFIT BEFORE MINORITY INTERESTS
MINORITY INTERESTS

NET PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 11
DIVIDEND

Final dividend proposed 12
EARNINGS PER SHARE 13

Basic

Diluted

2003

2002

HK$'000 HK$'000
3,849,254 3,547,005
(3,472.783) (3,184 858)

376,471 362,147
19,536 22,083
(62,370) (57,064)
(135,134) (129,026)

(2,365) (7,642)

196,138 190,498
(72,628) (82,780)
123,510 107,718
1219 2177
124,729 109,895
(1,430) (3,721)
123,299 106,174
(28,948) (26,046)
94,351 80,128
31,999 28,280
2003 2002

HK cents HK cents
13.6 12.2
13.4 12.0




NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment
Investment properties
Negative goodwill

[nterests in associates
Investments in securities
Non-current receivable

CURRENT ASSETS

Inventories

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables with insurance coverage
Advances to suppliers

Amounts due from associates

Trade receivables from an associate’

Tax recoverable

Pledged deposits

Bank balances and cash

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables

Discounting advances drawn on trade receivables

with insurance coverage
Taxation
Bank borrowings
Other borrowing

NET CURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES

NON-CURRENT LIABILITY
Bank borrowings

MINORITY INTERESTS
DEFERRED TAXATION
NET ASSETS

CAPITAL AND RESERVES

Share capital
Share premium and reserves

SHAREHOLDERS' FUNDS

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

At 31 March 2003

2003 2002

Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
14 310,415 333,978
15 55,930 61,400
16 (2,549) (1,324)
18 435 1,522
19 27,767 29,084
20 - 6,435
391,998 431,095

21 685,168 802,994
22 731,143 629,168
23 204,828 159,602
24 5115 55,991
25 5,113 6,077
25 137,309 150,053
1,494 703

26 11,167 1,145
210,434 99,232

1,991,771 1,904,965

27 372,146 275,982
178,597 191,472

2,461 3,071

28 704,200 785,600
29 - 63,278
1,257,404 1,319,403

734,367 585,562

1,126,365 1,016,657

28 70,499 68,955
268,616 251,528

30 3,150 2,995
784,100 693,179

31 71,089 65,691
713,011 627,488

784,100 693,179

The financial statements on pages 24 to 64 were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on
17 July 2003 and are signed on its behalf by:

Ng Joo Puay, Frank Cheng Nai Ming

Director

Director



COMPANY'S BALANCE

At 31 March 2003

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Interests in subsidiaries
Investments in securities

CURRENT ASSETS
Other receivable

Tax recoverable

Bank balances znd cash

TOTAL ASSETS

CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Share capital
Share premium and reserves

SHAREHOLDERS' FUNDS

Ng Joo Puay, Frank
Director

SHEET

2003 2002

Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
17 441,372 442377
19 5,100 5,100
446,472 447,477

55 -

819 489

100 76

974 565

447,446 448,042

31 71,089 65,691
34 376,357 382,351
447,446 448,042

Cheng Nai Ming
Director




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31 March 2003

Investment Asset
Share Share revofuation revaluation Goodwill Speciof Translation Retoined
capitol premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total
HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 KK$'000 HK$ 000

At 1 April 2001 65677 281339 {(12602) 34830  (109,611) 9,800 - 364407 633,840
Net revaluation

increase (decrease) arising on
- revaluation not recognised

in the income statement - - 5,140 (6,668) - - - - (1,528)
Shares repurchased

and cancelled (56) (112) - - - - - - (168)
Shares issued at premium 70 163 - - - - - - 233
Net profit for the year - - - - - - - 80,128 80,128
2001 fina! dividend paid - - - - - - - (19326)  {19.326)
At 31 March 2002 65691 281,390 (7.462) 28,162 (109,611) 9,800 - 425209 693179
Revaluation increase (decrease)

arising on revaluation, net - - 3,706 (1,464) - - - - 2,242
Exchange difference on

translation of the Group's

overseas operation - - - - - - 2,539 - 2,539

Net gain (losses) not recognised

in the income statement - - 3,706 (1.464) - - 2,539 - 4781
Shares issued at premium 5398 14,671 - - - - - - 20,069
Net profit for the year - - - - - - - 94,351 94,351
2002 final dividend paid - - - - - - - (282800 (28,280)
At 31 March 2003 71,089 296,061 (3,756) 26,698  (109,611) 9,800 2,539 491,280 784,100

The goodwill reserve comprises HK$26,302,000 (2002: HK$26,302,000) in respect of goodwill and HK$135,913,000
(2002: HK$135,913,000) in respect of negative goodwill.

The retained profits of the Group include HK$1,816,000 (2002: HK$1,997,000) retained by associates of the Group.
The special reserve of the Group represents the difference between the nominal vaiue of the shares of the

subsidiaries at the date on which they were acquired by the Company and the nominal value of the Company's
shares issued for the exchange of shares under the group reorganisation in 1994.



CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

For the year ended 31 March 2003

2003 2002
HK8'000 HK$'000
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit from operations 196,138 190,498
Adjustments for:
Dividend income (494) -
Interest income (1,345) (2,507)
Depreciation 35,615 39,597
Impairment loss on amounts due from associates - 3,923
Revaluation decrease on revaluation of land and buildings 759 2,219
Revaluation decrease on revaluation of investment properties 800 1,500
Loss (gain) on disposal of property, plant and equipment 806 (5)
Release of negative goodwill (75) (34)
Operating cash flows before movements in working capital 232,204 235191
Decrease (increase) in inventories 117,826 (417,536)
Increase in trade and other receivables (95,540) (11,281)
Increase in trade receivables with insurance coverage (45,226) (16,990)
Decrease (increase) in advances to suppliers 50,876 (51,831)
Decrease (increase) in amounts due from associates 964 (5,416)
Decrease in trade receivables from an associate 15,050 3,552
Increase in trade and other payables 96,153 47,551
{Decrease) increase in discounting advances drawn on trade
receivables with insurance coverage (12,875) 48,224
Cash generated from (used in) operation 359,432 (168,536)
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid (2,445) (2,824)
Overseas tax paid (265) (188)
Interest paid (72,617) (82,948)
NET CASH FROM (USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES 284,105 (254,496)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (17,500) {13,937)
Proceeds on disposal of property, plant and equipment 9,526 718
Purchase of investments in securities (4,817) (9,840)
Proceeds on disposal of investments in securities 9,840 -
Dividend income 434 -
Acquisition of additional interest in a subsidiary (2,449) (715)
Increase in pledged deposits (10,022) (509)
Interest received 1,345 2,529
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES (13,583) (21,754)




FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Issue of ordinary share capital
Contribution from minority shareholders
Repurchase of own shares

Net bank borrowings (repaid) raised
Repayment of other borrowing

Dividend paid

Dividend paid to minority shareholders

NET CASH (USED IN) FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

NET INCREASE iN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING
OF THE YEAR

EFFECT OF TRANSLATION DIFFERENCE

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF THE YEAR

ANALYSIS OF THE BALANCE OF CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalent as previously reported
Effect of reclassification of trust receipt and short term bank loans

as restated

Represented by:
Bank balances and cash
Bank overdrafts

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
For the year ended 31 March 2003

2003 2002
HK$'000 HK$'000
20,069 233
2 -
- (168)
(81,278) 334,819
(63,278) -
(28,280) (19,326)
(8,113) (6,195)
{160,878 309,363
109,644 33,113
83,900 50,787
136 -
193,680 83,900
18,719

65,181

83,900

210,434 99,232
(16,754) (15,332)
193,680 83,300




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2003

General

The Company is an exempted company incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability. Its shares and
warrants are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange"). Its uitimate
holding company is N.S. Hong Investment (BVI) Limited ("NSH"), a company incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands.

The Company acts as an investment holding company and provides corporate management services to group
companies. Details of the principal activities engaged in by the principal subsidiaries and associates are set
outf in notes 42 and 43 respectively.

Adoption of Statements of Standard Accounting Practice/Changes in
Accounting Policies

In the current year, the Group has adopted for the first time a number of new and revised Statements of
Standard Accounting Practice (“SSAPs") issued by the Hong Kong Society of Accountants. Adoption of these
SSAPs has led to a number of changes in the Group's accounting policies. The revised accounting policies
are set out in note 3. In addition, the adoption of these SSAPs has resulted in a change in the format of
presentation of the consolidated cash flow statement and the inclusion of a consolidated statement of
changes in equity in the financial statements. Comparative amounts for the prior year have been restated in
order to achieve a consistent presentation.

The adoption of these new and revised SSAPs have resulted in the following changes to the Group's
accounting policies that have affected the amounts and disclosures reported for the current or prior
periods.

Foreign currencies

The revisions to SSAP 11 "Foreign Currency Translation” have eliminated the choice of translating the
income statements of overseas operations at the closing rate for the year, the policy previously followed by
the Group. They are now required to be translated at an average rate. This change in accounting policy has
not had any material effect on the results for the current or prior accounting periods.

Cash flow statement

In the current year, the Group has adopted SSAP 15 (Revised) “Cash Flow Statements”. Under SSAP 15
(Revised), cash flows are classified under three headings - operating, investing and financing, rather than
the previous five headings. Interest and dividend received is now classified as investing cash flows. Interest
paid and dividends paid are now classified as operating cash flows and financing cash flows respectively.
Cash flows arising from taxes on income are classified as operating activities, unless they can be separately
identified with investing or financing activities.

In addition, the amounts presented for cash and cash equivalents have been amended to exclude trust
receipt and short term bank loans that are financing in nature. Cash flows of overseas operations have been
re-translated at the rates prevailing at the dates of the cash flows rather than the rate of exchange
prevailing on the balance sheet date. The re-definition of cash and cash equivalents has resulted in a
restatement of the comparative amounts shown in the cash flow statement.




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 March 2003

Adoption of Statements of Standard Accounting Practice/Changes in
Accounting Policies — Continued

Employee benefits

In the current year, the Group has adopted SSAP 34 “Employee Benefits", which introduces measurement
rules for employee benefits, including retirement benefit plans. Because the Group's participates only in
defined contribution retirement benefit schemes, the adoption of SSAP 34 has not had any material impact
on the financial statements of the Group for the current or prior accounting periods.

Significant Accounting Policies

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in
Hong Kong and under the historical cost convention, as modified for the revaluation of land and buildings,
investment properties and investments in securities. The principal accounting policies adopted are as
follows:

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries made up to 31 March each year.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated income
statement from the effective date of acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal, as appropriate.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on consolidation represents the excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group's interest
in the fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of a subsidiary at the date of acquisition.

Goodwill arising on acquisitions prior to 1 April 2001 continues to be held in reserves, and will be charged
to the income statement at the time of disposal of the relevant subsidiary or at such time as the goodwill
is determined to be impaired.

Goodwill arising on acquisition of subsidiaries after 1 April 2001 is capitalised and amortised on a straight-
fine basis over its useful economic life. Goodwill arising on the acquisition of subsidiaries is presented

separately in the balance sheet.

On disposal of a subsidiary, the attributable amount of unamortised goodwill/goodwill previously eliminated
against or credited to reserves is included in the determination of the profit or loss on disposal.

Negative goodwil!

Negative goodwill represents the excess of the Group's interest in the fair value of the identifiable assets
and liabilities of a subsidiary at the date of acquisition over the cost of acquisition.

Negative goodwill arising on acquisitions prior to 1 April 2001 continues to be held in reserves and will be
credited to income at the time of disposal of the relevant subsidiary.




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 March 2003

Significant Accounting Policies — Continued

Negative goodwill - continued

Negative goodwill arising on acquisitions after 1 April 2001 is presented separately in the balance sheet as
a deduction from assets. To the extent that such negative goodwill is attributable to losses or expenses
anticipated at the date of acquisition, it is released to income in the period in which those losses or
expenses arise, The remaining negative goodwill is recognised as income on a straight-line basis over the
remaining average useful life of the identifiable acquired depreciable assets. To the extent that such
negative goodwill exceeds the aggregate fair value of the acquired identifiable non-monetary assets, it is
recognised in income immediately.

Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are included in the Company's balance sheet at cost less any identified
impairment 10ss.

Interests in associates

The consolidated income statement includes the Group's share of the post-acquisition results of its
associates for the year. In the consolidated balance sheet, interests in associates are stated at the Group's
share of the net assets of the associates, less any identified impairment loss.

Revenue recognition

Sales of goods are recognised when goods are delivered and title has passed.

Shipping service income is recognised upon the completion of the contracts for shipping services.

Interest income is accrued on a time basis by reference to the principal outstanding and at the interest rate
applicable.

Rental income, including rentals invoiced in advance from properties held under operating leases, is
recognised on a straight-line basis over the terms of the relevant leases.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment other than land and buildings and construction in progress are stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Land and buildings are stated in the balance sheet at their revalued amount, being the fair value at the
date of revaluation less any subsequent accumulated depreciation and any subsequent impairment losses.
Revaluatiors are performed with sufficient reqularity such that the carrying amount does not differ
materially from that which would be determined using fair values at the balance sheet date.




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 March 2003

Significant Accounting Policies = Continued
Property, plant and equipment = continued

Any revaluation increase arising on revaluation of land and buildings is credited to the asset revaluation
reserve, except to the extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease of the same asset previously recognised
as an expense, in which case the increase is credited to the income statement to the extent of the decrease
previously charged. A decrease in net carrying amount arising on revaluation of an asset is dealt with as an
expense to the extent that it exceeds the balance, if any, on the asset revajuation reserve relating to a
previous revaluation of that asset. On the subsequent sale or retirement of a revalued asset, the
attributable revaluation surplus is transferred to retained profits. '

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost or valuation of items of property, plant and equipment other
than construction in progress over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Rates Method
Freehold land Nil -
Leasehold land Qver the term of the lease straight-line
Buildings 4% straight-line
Leasehold improvements 30% reducing balance
Furniture and fixtures 30% reducing balance
Office equipment 40% reducing balance
Motor vehicles 40% reducing balance
Plant and machinery 20% - 40% reducing balance
Vessels 20% : straight-line

The gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an asset is determined as the difference between
the sale proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in the income statement.

[nvestment properties

Investment properties are completed properties which are held for their investment potential, any rental
income being negotiated at arm's length.

Investment properties are stated at their open market value based on independent professional valuations at
the balance sheet date. Any revaluation increase or decrease arising on the revaluation of investment
properties is credited or charged to the investment property revaluation reserve unless the balance on this
reserve is insufficient to cover a revaluation decrease, in which case the excess of the revaluation decrease
over the balance on the investment property revaluation reserve is charged to the income statement. Where
a decrease has previously been charged to the income statement and a revaluation increase subsequently
arises, this increase is credited to the income statement to the extent of the decrease previously charged.

On disposal of an investment property, the balance on the investment property revaluation reserve
attributable to that property is transferred to the income statement.

No depreciation is provided on investment properties except where the unexpired term of the relevant lease
is 20 years or less.




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 March 2003

Significant Accounting Policies — Continued

Investments in securities
Investments in securities are recognised on a trade-date basis and are initially measured at cost.

At subsequent reporting dates, debt securities that the Group has the expressed intention and ability to
hold to maturity (held-to-maturity debt securities) are measured at amortised cost, less any impairment loss
recognised to reflect irrecoverable amounts. The annual amortisation of any discount or premium on the
acquisition of a held-to-maturity security is aggregated with other investment income receivable over the
term of the instrument so that the revenue recognised in each period represents a constant yield on the
investment.

All securities other than held-to-maturity debt securities are measured at subsequent reporting dates at fair
value.

Where securities are held for trading purposes, unrealised gains and losses are included in net profit or loss
for the period. For other securities, unrealised gains and losses are dealt with in equity, until the security is
disposed of or is determined to be impaired, at which time the cumulative gain or loss previously
recognised in equity is included in net profit or loss for the period.

Impairment

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its assets to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If the recoverable amount of an
asset is estimated to be fess than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its
recoverable amount. impairment losses are recognised as an expense immediately, unless the relevant asset
is carried at a revalued amount under another accounting standard, in which case the impairment loss is
treated as a revaluation decrease under that accounting standard.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in
prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as income immediately, unless the relevant asset
is carried at a revalued amount under another accounting standard, in which case the reversal of the
impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase under that other accounting standard.

Preliminary set up costs for vessels

Preliminary set up costs for vessels are charged as expenses when incurred.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, are
capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. Capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases when the

assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.
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Significant Accounting Policies - Continued
Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost, which comprises all costs of
purchase and, where applicable, costs of conversion and other costs that have been incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and conditions, is calculated using the weighted average method. Net
realisable value represents the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less all estimated
costs of completion and estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Foreign currencies

Transactions in currencies other than Hong Kong dollar are initially recorded at the rates of exchange
prevailing on the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in currencies other
than Hong Kong dollar are re-translated at the rates prevailing on the balance sheet date. Gains and losses
arising on exchange are included in net profit or loss for the period.

On censolidation, the assets and liabilities of the Group's overseas operations which are denominated in
currencies other than Hong Kong dollar are translated at the exchange rates prevailing on the balance
sheet date. Income and expense items are translated at the average exchange rates for the period.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are classified as equity and transferred to the Group's translation
reserve. Such translation differences are recognised as income or as expenses in the period in which the
operation is disposed of.

Taxation

The charge for taxation is based on the results for the year as adjusted for items which are non-assessable
or disallowed. Timing differences arise from the recognition for tax purposes of certain items of income and
expense in a different accounting period from that in which they are recognised in the financial
statements. The tax effect of timing differences, computed using the liability method, is recognised as
deferred taxation in the financial statements to the extent that it is probable that a liability or an asset
will crystallise in the foreseeable future.

Operating leases

Rental expenses under operating leases are charged to the income statement on a straight-line basis over
the relevant terms of leases.

Retirement benefits costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans and the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are
charged as an expense as they fall due.
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4. Turnover and Segment Information

An analysis of the Group's turnover and contribution to profit from operations by principal activity and
geographical market is as follows:

Business segments

For management purposes, the Group is currently organised into four operating divisions - frozen fish,
fillets and portions, shipping services and vegetables. These divisions are the basis on which the Group
reports its primary segment information.

Principal activities are as follows:

Frozen fish - trading of frozen seafood products

Fillets and portions Selling and processing of frozen seafood products

Shipping services vessel charter-hire and trading of marine fuel

Vegetables trading and processing of frozen vegetables
Segment information about these businesses is presented below.

YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2003

frozen Fillets and Shipping
fish portions services Vegetables Consolidoted
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TURNOVER )
External sales (Note) 2,107,504 1,685,387 16,317 40,046 3,849,254
RESULT
Segment result 151,367 157,111 680 4,943 314,101
Unallocated corporate expenses {117,963)
Profit from operations 196,138
Finance costs (72,628)
Share of results of associates - 1,219 - - 1,219
Profit before taxation 124,729
Taxation (1,430)
Profit before minority interests 123,299

Note: There is no inter-segment sales between different business segments for the year ended 31 March 2003.
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Turnover and Segment Information ~ Continued

Business segments - continued

YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2002

TURNOVER
External sales (Note)

RESULT
Segment result

Unallocated corporate expenses
Profit from operations
Finance costs

Share of results of associates

Profit before taxation
Taxation

Profit before minority interests

Note:

2003

Frozen Fillets and Shipping

fish portions services Vegetables Consolidated
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
2,034,003 1,454,575 23,447 34,980 3,547,005
154,379 146,416 274 4,014 305,083
(114,585)

190,498
{82,780)

- 2,177 - - 2177
109,895
(3,721)

106,174

BALANCE SHEET AT 31 MARCH 2003

ASSETS

Segment assets

Investments in associates
Unallocated corporate assets

Consolidated total assets

LIABILITIES
Segment liabilities
Unallocated corporate liabilities

Consolidated total liabilities

Frozen Fillets and

fish portions

HK$'000 HK$'000
1,159,751 553,017
- 137,309
243,050 123,086

Shipping
services
HK$'000

17,145

Vegetables
HK$°000

45,527

877

Unallocated
assets/
ligtilities
HK$'000

5,548
465,472

963,940

There is no inter-segment sales between different business segments for the year ended 31 March 2002.

Consolidated
HK$'000

1,775,440
142,857
465472

2,383,769

367,113
963,940

1,331,053

()
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4. Turnover and Segment Information - Continued

OTHER INFORMATION FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2003

Frozen Fillets and Shipping
fish portions services Vegetables Consolidated
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
Capital additions 33 15,501 - 1,966 17,500
Depreciation 2,491 16,874 10,516 5,734 35615
Release of negative goodwill {75) - - - (75)
Revaluation decrease arising on
revaluation of
- Land and buildings - 759 - - 759
~ Investment properties 500 300 - - 800
2002
BALANCE SHEET AT 31 MARCH 2002
Unailocated
Frozen Fillets and Shipping assets/
fish portions services Vegetables liabilities Consolidated
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ASSETS
Segment assets 1,338,489 389,754 39,643 45,825 - 1,813,711
Investments in associates - 150,053 - - 7,599 157,652
Unallocated corporate assets - - - - 364,697 364,697
Consolidated total assets 2,336,060
LIABILITIES
Segment liabilities 32,312 227,767 7,119 968 - 268,166
Unallocated corporate liabilities - - - - 1,123,187 1,123,187
Consolidated total fiabilities 1,391,353
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Turnover and Segment Information ~ Continued

OTHER INFORMATION FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2002

Capital additions
Depreciation
Release of negative goodwill
Revaluation decrease arising on
revaluation of
~ Land and buildings
- Investment properties
Impairment recognised in the
income statement

Geographical segments

Frozen
fish
HK$'000

5,264
8,190
(34)

940

Fillets and
portions
HK$'000

6,525
8,760

1,279
1,500

Shipping
services
HK$'000

19,867

For the year ended 31 March 2003

Unallocated

Vegetables gmount Consolidated
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
2,148 - 13,937
2,780 - 39,597

. - (34)

- - 2,219

- - 1,500

- 3,923 3,923

The Group's operations are located in the People's Republic of China {the "PRC"), North Amercia, Western

Europe, Eastern Europe and Japan.

The following table provides an analysis of the Group's sales by geographical market, irrespective of the

origin of the goods/services:

PRC

North America
Western Europe
Japan

Eastern Europe
Other

Turnover by
geographical market

2003 2002
HK$'000 HK$'000
1,928,927 1,815,875
905,795 867,826
791,161 656,758
172,277 154,322
19,912 23,728
31,182 28,496
3,849,254 3,547,005
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4. Turnover and Segment Information — Continued
Geograpkical segments - continued

The following is an analysis of the carrying amount of segment assets, and additions to property, plant and
equipment, analysed by the geographical area in which the assets are located:

Carrying Additions to

gmount of property, plant

segment assets and equipment
2003 2002 2003 2002
HK$'000 HK3'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
PRC 1,574,400 1,518,788 15,526 12,965
North America 148,092 195,258 1,974 972
Western Europe 211,111 177,088 - -
Eastern Europe 431,800 371,975 - -
Japan 1,791 3,711 - -
Other 16,575 69,240 - -
2,383,769 2,336,060 17,500 13,937

5. Other Operating Income
2003 2002
HK$'000 HK$'000
Other operating income comprises of:

Agency fee income 7,199 12,000
Compensation on damages 692 -
Dividend income 494 -
Interest income 1,345 2,507
Gross rental from investment properties 8,365 4,266
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment - 5
Release of negative goodwill 75 34
Sundry income 1,366 485
Exchange gain, net - 2,786
19,536 22,083




Other Operating Expenses

Other operating expenses comprise of:

Revaluation decrease arising on revaluation of:

- Land and buildings

- Investment properties
Impairment loss on amounts due from associates
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment

Profit from Operations

Profit from operations has been arrived at after charging:
Auditors' remuneration
Depreciation

Operating lease rentals in respect of rented premises

Retirement benefits scheme contributions
Other staff costs

and after crediting:

Net rental income after outgoings

Finance Costs

Interest on bank borrowings

- whoily repayable within five years

- not wholly repayable within five years
Interest on promissory note

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2003

2003 2002
HK$'000 HK$'000
759 2,219
800 1,500

- 3,923

806 -
2,365 7,642
2003 2002
HK$'000 HK$000
2,452 2,034
35,615 39,597
3,785 5,781
1,210 1,274
59,063 67,874
60,273 69,148
7,528 4,266
2003 2002
HK$ 000 HK$000
67,602 74,262
2,616 2,190
2,410 6,328
72,628 82,780
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9. Directors' Emoluments

Directors' fees
- executive
- independent non-executive

Other emcluments - executive directors
Salaries and other benefits in kind
- cash
- benefits-in-kind
Performance related incentive payment
Retirement benefit scheme contributions

Benefits-in-kind mainly represent the estimated monetary value of accommodation provided to certain

directors of the Company.

Emoluments of the directors were within the following bands:

HKS nil to HK$1,000,000

HK$1,000,601 to HK$1,500,000
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000

2003 2002
HK$'000 HK$'000
480 480
480 480
8,775 7,673
3,376 4,621
2,120 2,120
317 292
14,588 14,706
15,068 15,186
2003 2002
Na. of No. of
Directors Directors
3 4

1 -

2 2

2 1

1 1

- 1

9 9

The five highest paid individuals of the Group for the years ended 31 March 2003 and 31 March 2002 are

all directors.




10.

11.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 March 2003

Taxation
2003 2002
HK$'000 HK$'000
The charge comprises:
Profit for the year
- Hong Kong 1,490 2,950
- other jurisdictions 265 16
{Over} under provision in prior year
- Hong Kong (480) 91
Tax attributable to the Company and its subsidiaries 1,275 3,057
Deferred taxation 155 -
Share of taxation attributable to associates - 664
Taxation charge for the year 1,430 3,721

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16% of the estimated assessable profits for the year.
Taxation in other jurisdictions are calculated at the rates prevailing in the respective jurisdiction.

As a substantial portion of the Group's profit neither arises in, nor is derived from, Hong Kong and
accordingly it is not subject to Hong Kong Profits Tax.

Details of deferred taxation are set-out in note 30.

Net Profit for the Year

Of the Group's net profit for the year of HK$94,351,000 (2002: HK$80,128,000}, a net profit of

HK$7,615,000 (2002: HK$3,935,000) has been dealt with in the financial statements of the Company.
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12.

13.

Dividend

Final dividend:
Proposed final dividend of HK4.5 cents
{2002: 4 cents) per share

Additional prior year's dividend paid on shares
issued upon exercise of share options
subsequent to year end

2003 2002
HK$'000 HK$'000
31,999 26,276
- 2,004
31,999 28,280

The final dividend has been proposed by the directors and is subject to approval by the shareholders in the

forthcoming general meeting.

Earnings per Share

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share for the two years ended 31 March 2003 are

based on the following data:

Earnings for the purposes of calculation of basic and
diluted earnings per share

Weighted average number of ordinary shares
for the purposes of calculation of basic earnings per share
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares in respect of
share options

Weighted average number of ordinary shares
for the purposes of calculation of diluted earnings per share

2003 2002

HK$ 000 HKk$'000
94,351 80,128
692,711,091 656,492,225
11,294,037 10,357,949
704,005,128 666,850,174

Diluted earnings per share has not accounted for the conversion of the Company's outstanding warrants for
the year as the exercise price of the Company's outstanding warrants is higher than the average market

price per share.




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 March 2003

14. Property, Plant and Equipment

Furniture Construction
Land ond Leosehold ond Office Motor Plant and in
buildings  improvements fixtures equipment vehicles machinery Vessels progress Totol

HKS000 HK8'000 HK§ 000 HKS'000 HK§'000 H$'000 HK§'000 K§'000 HK§'000

THE GROUP
COST OR VALUATION
At 1.4.2002 219,400 13,610 14,954 25,414 21,824 92,524 94,087 6,532 488,345
Exchange realignment 927 114 9 140 170 1,209 - 121 2,690
Additions - 5,359 1,884 2,459 1,352 5131 - 1,315 17,500
Disposals - - - {20) (748)  (1,657) (47.043) - [49,488)
Transfer from investment

properties 5,000 - - - - - - - 5,000
Reclassification - - - - - 6 - (8) -
Revaluation decrease (7848) - - - - - - - (7.848)
At 31.3.2003 217,481 19,083 16,847 27,993 22,598 97,213 47,044 7962 456,221
Comprising:
At cost - 19,083 16,847 27,993 22,598 97,213 47,044 7962 238,740
At valuation ~ 1999 4,134 - - - - - - - 4134
At valuation - 2003 213,347 - - - - - - - 213347

217,481 19,083 16,847 27,993 22,598 97,213 47044 7962 456,221

DEPRECIATION
At 1.4.2002 99 7,076 11,940 16,511 15,991 35,054 67,696 - 154,367
Exchange realignment - 3 8 92 137 N - - 583
Provided for the year 5,656 2,475 1177 3,321 1,948 10,522 10,516 - 35615
Eliminated on disposals - - - (15) (298) (700)  (38,123) - (39,138)
Adjustment on revaluation {5,623) - - - - - - - (5623)
At 31.3.2003 132 9,588 13,123 19,909 17,778 45,187 40,089 - 145806
NET BOOK VALUES
At 31.3.2003 217,348 9,495 3,724 8,084 4,820 52,026 6,955 7962 310,415

At 31.3.2002 219,301 6,534 3014 8903 5833 57470 26391 6,532 333978
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14. Property, Plant and Equipment - Continued

The net book value of land and buildings shown above comprises:

Land in Hong Kong held under long leases

Land in the PRC held under long leases

Land in the PRC held under medium-term leases
Freehold {and in the United States of America ("USA")

THE GROUP
2003 2002
HK$'000 HK$'000
161,747 163,666
- 2,500
51,600 49,100
4,002 4,035
217,349 219,301

The leasehold land and buildings of the Group in Hong Kong and the PRC were revalued at 31 March 2003
on an open market value basis by Messrs. BMI Appraisals Limited, an independent property valuer.

The directors engaged Messrs. D.J. Brown Associates, independent property valuers, to provide a valuation of
the land and buildings situated in the USA on 2 June 1999, The valuation of this land and buildings was
US$530,000 (approximately HK$4,134,000). The directors consider that the carrying value of this property at

31 March 2003 is not materially different from its fair value.

If leasehald land and buildings of the Group had not been revalued, they would have been included on a

historical cost basis at the following amounts;

Cost
Accumulated depreciation

Net book value at 31 March 2003

Net book value at 31 March 2002

HK$'000

246,432
(36,649)

209,783

209,504
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Investment Properties

THE GROUP
2003 2002
HK$ 000 HK$'000
AT VALUATION
At beginning of the year ~ 61,400 63,400
Exchange realignment 330 -
Revaluation decrease arising on revaluation (800} (2,000}
Transferred to land and buildings (5,000} -
At end of the year 55,930 61,400
The carrying value of investment properties shown above comprises:
THE GROUP
2003 2002
HK$'000 HK$'000
Land in Hong Kong hetd under long leases 18,300 24,000
Land in the PRC held under long leases 37,630 37,400
55,930 61,400

The investment properties are rented out under operating leases.

The investment properties of the Group in Hong Kong and the PRC were revalued at 31 March 2003 on an
open market value basis by Messrs. BMI Appraisals Limited, an independent property valuer,
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16. Negative Goodwill

HK$'000
THE GROUP

GROSS AMOUNT

At 1 April 2002 {1,358)
Arising on the acquisitions of additional interest in a subsidiary during the year (1,300)
At 31 March 2003 (2,658)
RELEASED TO THE INCOME STATEMENT

At 1 April 2002 34
Released during the year 75
At 31 March 2003 109
CARRYING AMOUNT

At 31 March 2003 (2,549)
At 31 March 2002 (1,324)

The addition to negative goodwill during the year arose on the Group's acquisitions of additional 0.37% and
0.18% of equity interest of Pacific Andes (Holdings) Limited in January 2003 and March 2003 respectively.
For the acquisitions in January 2003 and March 2003, negative goodwill amounting to HK$845,000 and
HK$455,000 were identified respectively. The negative goodwill is refeased to income on a straight-line
basis of 20 years, representing the estimated average useful life of the depreciable assets acquired.

17. Interests in Subsidiaries

THE COMPANY

2003 2002

HK8'000 HK$'000

Unlisted shares 41,926 41,926
Amounts due from subsidiaries 399,446 400,451
441,372 442,377

Particulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries at 31 March 2003 are set out in note 42.

The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured and will not be repayable within twelve months of the
balance sheet date. Except for an amount of HK$399,446,000 (2002: HK$390,451,000) which bears interest
at rates ranging from 1.43% to 5.42%, the remaining amounts are interest-free.




18.

19.

20.

Interests in Associates

Share of net assets
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Particulars of the Group's principal associates as at 31 March 2003 are set out in note 43,

Investments in Securities

Non-current other equity securities:

Listed
Hong Kong
Overseas

Unlisted

Market value of listed securities

THE GROUP
2003 2002
HK$ 000 HK$'000
435 1,522

THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2003 2002 2003 2002
HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
11,737 8,031 - -
4,817 - - -
16,554 8,031 - -
11,213 21,053 5,100 5,100
27,767 29,084 5,100 5,100
16,554 8,031 - -

In 1997, the Company issued 12,354,864 shares of the Company to National Fish and Seafood Inc. ("NFS")
for the issue of 60% of the enlarged share capital in NFS to the Group. NFS holds the Company's shares as

non-current investments.

Non-Current Receivable

Consideration receivable for sale of a vessel

Receivable as follows:
Within one year

More than one year but less than five years

Less: Amount due within one year included under

trade and other receivables [note 22)

Amount due after one year

THE GROUP
2003 2002
HK$'000 HK$'000
15,803 15,803
6,435 9,368
- 6,435
6,435 15,803
(6,435) (9,368)
- 6,435

The receivable is secured by the vessel and bears interest at 12% (2002: 12%) per annum.
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21. Inventories

Inventories, at cost, consist of the following:

Frozen fish

Fillets and portions
Fuel

Seeds and vegetables
Packing materials

22. Trade and Other Receivables

THE GROUP

2003 2002
HK$'000 HK$'000
394,949 632,313
275,950 156,774
681 7,459
5,968 5,501
7,620 947
685,168 802,394

Included in trade and other receivables are trade receivables of HK$438,829,000 (2002: HK$463,309,000)
and bifls receivables of HK$55,617,000 (2002: HK$nil) respectively. The Group maintains a defined credit
policy. For sales of goods, the Group alfows an average credit period of 30 days to 120 days to its trade
customers. The aged analysis of trade receivabies and bills receivables at the balance sheet date is as

follows:

Less than 30 days

31 - 60 days
61 - 90 days
91 - 120 days

Over 120 days

THE GROUP
2003 2002
HK$'000 HK$'000
492,717 244,584
39,195 132,175
12,480 78,971
8,722 2,120
1,332 5,459
554,446 463,309




23.

24.

25.

26.
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Trade Receivables with Insurance Coverage
Included in the trade receivables with insurance coverage are discounted trade receivables of
HK$145,451,000 (2002: HK$159,602,000) which have been discounted to certain banks under the receivable

discounting advance facilities.

The aged analysis of the trade receivable with insurance caverage at balance sheet date is as follows:

THE GROUP
2003 2002
HK$'000 HK$'000
Less than 30 days 108,118 97,405
31 - 60 days 83,282 34,417
61 - 90 days 8,729 27,780
91 - 120 days 3,920 -
Over 120 days 779 -
204,828 159,602

Advances to Suppliers
THE GROUP

The amounts are secured by the vessels of the suppliers and are interest-free.

Trade Receivables from an Associate and Amounts Due from Associates
THE GROUP

Trade receivables from an associate and amounts due from associates are secured, interest-free and are
repayable on demand.

Pledged Deposits
THE GROUP
The amount represents settlement of trade receivables with insurance coverage held by the discounting

institutions for repayment of discounting advances and deposits pledged to banks to secure banking
facilities granted to the Group.
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27. Trade and Other Payables

Included in trade and other payables are trade payables of HK$312,470,000 (2002: HK$221,657,000). The

aged analysis of trade payables at the balance sheet date is as follows:

Less than 30 days
31 - 60 days
61 - 90 days
Over 90 days

28. Bank Borrowings

Bank borrowings camprise:

Inventory loans
Trust receipt and short term bank loans
Mortgage loans
Bank overdrafts

Analysed as:
Secured
Unsecured

The maturity of bank borrowings is as follows:
Within one year
Between one and two years

Between two and five years
Over five years

Amount due within one year classified as current liabilities

Amount due after one year

THE GROUP
2003 2002
HK$'000 HK$'000
122,295 197,935
110,209 262
60,515 23,216
19,451 244
312,470 221,857

THE GROUP
2003 2002
HK§'000 HK§'000
225,909 138,796
453,957 623,352
78,079 77,075
16,754 15,332
774,699 854,555
303,988 215,871
470,711 638,684
774,699 854,555
HK$'000 HK$'000
704,200 785,600
7,598 8,144
23,141 19,712
39,760 41,099
774,699 854,555
(704,200) (785,600)
70,498 68,955
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Other Borrowing

THE GROUP

As at 31 March 2002, the other borrowing represented a promissory note issued upon the Group's
acquisition of the remaining 30% interest in Pelican Food Limited and its subsidiaries in August 1999. The

promissory note was unsecured, carried interest at 10% per annum and fully repaid during the year ended
31 March 2003.

Deferred Taxation

THE GROUP

2003 2002

HK$°000 HK8000

Balance at beginning of the year 2,995 2,995

Charge for the year {note 10) 155 -

Balance at end of year 3,150 2,995
e —

The amounts mainly represent the tax effect in respect of timing difference attributable to the excess of
depreciation allowances claimed for tax purposes over depreciation charged in the financial statements.

Deferred taxation has not been provided on the revaluation increase or decrease arising on the valuation of
land and buildings, investment properties and investment in securities as gains or losses arising on the
disposal of these assets would not be subject to taxation. Accordingly, the revaluation increase or decrease
does not constitute a timing difference for tax purpose.

There is no significant unprovided deferred taxation of the Group and the Company at 31 March 2003 and
31 March 2002.

Share Capital

Number of shares Amount
HK$ 000
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each
Authorised:
At 31 March 2002 and 31 March 2003 2,000,000,000 200,000
Issued and fully paid: :
At 1 April 2001 656,765,266 65,677
Repurchase of shares by the Company (560,000) {58)
Exercise of share options 700,000 70
At 31 March 2002 656,905,266 65,691
Exercise of share options 53,350,000 5,395
Exercise of warrants 31,061 3

At 31 March 2003 710,886,327 71,089
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32.

Share Option Scheme

The purpose of the share option scheme is to provide incentive to the directors and employee of the Group.
Under the terms of the share option scheme (the “Scheme”) which was adopted on 9 September 1994 and
will expire on 8 September 2004, the Board may grant options to directors and employees of the Company
and its subsidiaries to subscribe for shares in the Company, at a price equal to the higher of the nominal
vatue of the shares and 80% of the average of the closing prices of the shares on the Stock Exchange on
the five trading days immediately preceding the date of the grant of the options. The exercisable period will
be determined by the Board and in any event not exceeding a period of 5 years commencing on and two
years after the date of acceptance by the grantee and expiring on the last date of such period or 8
September 2004 whichever is earlier. The grantee is required to pay non refundable consideration of
HK$1.00 upon acceptance of the offer. The maximum entitlement of each participant shall not exceed 25%
of the maximum number of shares in respect of which options may be granted under the Scheme.

At 31 March 2003, the number of shares in respect of which options had been granted and remained
outstanding under the Scheme was 7,200,000, representing 1% of the shares of the Company (excluding
any shares issued pursuant to the Scheme} in issue at that date. The number of shares issuable under the
Scheme is not to exceed 10% of the issued share capital of the Company from time to time excluding any
shares issued pursuant to the Scheme.

As the Scheme no longer complies with the amended Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited {the "Listing Rules”) governing the share option schemes, no further option
can be granted under the Scheme from 1 September 2001 unless the grant complies with the amended
Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules. Nevertheless, options previously granted under the Scheme will continue to
be exercisable in accordance with the Scheme.

At 31 March 2003, the following options to subscribe for shares were outstanding under the Company's
share option scheme:

2003

Category 1: Directors

Number of share options held

Subscription Outstonding Outstanding

Date of price at Exercised Ltapsed ot

Exercisable period grant per share T April 2002 during the year  during the year 31 March 2003

HKS

25 October 1998 - 24.10.1996 0.9440 2,000,000 - - 2,000,000
24 October 2003

11 July 1999 - 10.7.1997 1.1168 600,000 - - 600,000

10 July 2004

21 Augﬁst 2000 - 21.2.2000 0.3336 48,000,000 {44,000,000) - 4,000,000
20 August 2005

21 February 2002 - 21.2.2000 0.3336 2,000,000 (2,000,000) - -

20 February 2007

Total number of share option
held by directors 52,600,000 (46,000,000) - 6,600,000
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2003 - continued

Category 2: Employees

Exercisable period

25 October 1997 -
24 Qctober 2002

25 QOctober 1998 -
24 October 2003

25 October 1999 -
24 October 2004

25 October 2000 -
24 October 2005

21 February 2001 -
20 February 2006

21 February 2002 -
~ 20 February 2007

Total number of share options

held by employees

Total number of share options

Date of
grant

24.10.1996

24.10.1996

24.10.1996

24.10.1996

21.2.2000

21.2.2000

Subscription
price

per share
HK$

0.9940

0.9440

0.9440

0.9440

0.3336

0.3336

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 March 2003

Number of share options held

Outstanding Outstanding
ot Exercised Lapsed at

1 April 2002 during the year  during the year 31 March 2003
100,000 - (100,000) -
3,250,000 (2,650,000) 600,000
300,000 {300,000) -
400,000 (400,000) -
4,000,000 (4,000,000) -
600,000 (600,000 -
8,650,000 (7,950,000}  {100,000) 600,000
61,250,000 (53,950,000} (100,000} 7,200,000

The average closing prices of the Company’s share immediately before the dates of which the share options
exercised during the year ended 31 March 2003 range from HK$0.60 to HK$1.13.

No share option was granted by the Company during the year ended 31 March 2003.
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32. Share Option Scheme - Continued

2002

Cotegory 1: Directors

Number of share options held

Subscription Outstanding Outstanding
Date of price at Exercised Cancelled at
Exercisable period grant per share 1 April 2001 during the year  during the year 31 March 2002
HK$
25 October 1998 - 24.10.1996 0.9440° 2,000,000 - - 2,000,000
24 October 2003
11 July 1999 - 10.7.1997 1.1168 600,000 - - 600,000
10 July 2004 ,
21 August 2002 - 21.2.2000 0.3336 48,000,000 - - 48,000,000
20 August 2005
21 February 2002 - 21.2.2000 0.3336 2,000,000 - - 2,000,000
20 February 2007
Total number of share option
held by directors 52,600,000 - - 52,600,000

Category 2: Employees

Number of share options held

Subscription Outstanding Outstanding

Date of price at Exercised Concelled at

Exercisable period grant per share 1 April 2001 during the yeor  during the year 31 March 2002

HKS

25 October 1997 - 24.10.1996 0.9940 100,000 - - 100,000
24 October 2002

25 October 1998 - 24.10.1996 0.9440 3,750,000 - (500,000) 3,250,000

24 October 2003 '

25 October 1999 - 24,10.1996 0.9440 300,000 - - 300,000
24 October 2004

25 Qctober 2000 - 24.710.1996 0.9440 400,000 - - 400,000
24 QOctober 2005

21 February 2001 - 21.2.2000 0.3336 4,000,000 - - 4,000,000
20 February 2006

21 February 2002 - 21.2.2000 0.3336 1,300,000 {700,000) - 600,000

20 February 2007

Total number of share options
held by employees 9,850,000 (700,000)  (500,000) 8,650,000

Total number of share options 62,450,000 (700,000)  (500,000) 61,250,000

The average closing price of the Company's share immediately before the date of which the share options
exercised during the year ended 31 March 2002 was HK$0.59.

No share option was granted by the Company during the year ended 31 March 2002.
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Warrants
Warrants with subscription
price of HK$0.85
Number HK$'000
Balance at date of issue of warrants 141,401,053 120,191
Exercised during the year (31,061) 2n
Balance in issue at 31 March 2003 141,369,992 120,164

On 16 September 2002, a bonus issue of 141,401,053 warrant ("2004 Warrants") was made on the basis of
one 2004 Warrant for every five existing ordinary shares then held on 16 September 2002.

Each 2004 Warrant entitles the registered holder to subscribe in cash at an initial subscription price of
HK$0.85, subject to adjustment, for one ordinary share of HK$0.10 each in the Company, at any time from
26 September 2002 to 25 March 2004 (both dates inclusive).

Subsequent to the date of issue, 31,061 2004 Warrants were exercised to subscribe for ordinary shares. At

31 March 2003, the Company had outstanding 141,369,992 2004 Warrants. Exercise in full of such 2004
Warrants would result in the issue to 141,369,992 additional shares.

Share Premium and Reserves

Share : Contributed Retained

premium surplus profits Tota!

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THE COMPANY
At 1 April 2001 281,339 39,225 77,498 398,062
Shares repurchased and cancelled {112) - - (112)
Share issued at a premium 163 - - 163
Net profit for the year - - 3,935 3,935
2001 final dividend paid - - (19,697) (19,697)
At 31 March 2002 281,390 39,225 61,736 382,351
Share issued at a premium 14,671 - - 14,671
Net profit for the year - - 7,615 7,615
2002 final dividend paid - - (28,280) (28,280)
At 31 March 2003 296,061 39,225 41,071 376,357

The contributed surplus of the Company represents the difference between the consolidated shareholders’
funds of the subsidiaries at the date on which they were acquired by the Company, and the nominal
amount of the Company's shares issued for the acquisition under the group reorganisation in 1994 and
after the distribution to the shareholders of the Company.
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34.

35.

Share Premium and Reserves — Continued

Under the applicable laws of Bermuda, the contributed surplus account of a company is available for
distribution. However, the Company cannot declare or pay a dividend, or make a distribution out of
contributed surplus if:

(a) it is, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its liabilities as they become due; or

{b) the realisable value of its assets would thereby be less than the aggregate of its liabilities and its
issued share capital and share premium accounts.

In the opinion of the directors, the Company's reserves available for distribution to shareholders were as
follows:

2003 2002

HK$'000 HK$'000

Contributed surplus 39,225 39,225
Retained profits 41,071 61,736
80,296 100,961

Retirement Benefits Scheme

The Group operates Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme ("MPF Scheme”) for all employees in Hong Kong. The
MPF Scheme is registered with the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme Authority under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those funds of
the Group under the control of trustees. Under the rules of the MPF Scheme, the employer and its
employees are each required to make contributions to the MPF Scheme at rates specified in the rules. The
only obligation of the Group with respect of MPF Scheme is to make the required contributions under the
MPF Scheme.

The retirement benefits scheme contributions represent contributions payable to the schemes by the Group
at rates specified in the rules of the schemes.

Employees of the subsidiaries in the PRC are members of pension schemes operated by the Chinese local
government. The subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain percentage of the relevant part of the
payroll of these employees to the pension schemes to fund the benefits. The only obligation for the Group
with respect to the pension schemes is the required contributions under the pension schemes.
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36. Operating Lease Commitments

37.

The Group as lessee

At the balance sheet date, the Group had commitments for future minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating ieases in respect of rented premises which fall due as follows:

2003 2002
HK$'000 HK$'000
Within one year 8,930 4,930
In the second to fifth years inclusive 16,527 8,114
After five years 26,145 28,170
51,602 41,214

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group for certain of its office premises,
processing plants and farmland. Leases are negotiated for terms ranging from one to ten years.

The Group as lessor

Property rental income earned during the year was HK$8,365,000 (2002: HK$4,266,000). The investment
properties of the Group are expected to generate rental yield of 8% (2002: 7%) on an ongoing basis.
Certain of the Group's investment properties held have committed tenants ranging from one to five years.

At the balance sheet date, the Group had contracted with tenants for the following future minimum lease
payments in respect of investment properties which fall due as follows:

2003 2002
HK$'000 HK$'000
Within one year 2,314 1,950
In the second to fifth years inclusive 748 2,655
3,062 4,505
Capital Commitments
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2003 2002 2003 2002
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
At 31 March 2003, the Group had
commitment for capital expenditure
in respect of the acquisition of
property, plant and equipment
as follows:
Contracted for but not provided in the
financial statements 8,469 6,283 2,730 -
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38. Major Non-Cash Transaction

During the year, dividend income amounting to HK$1,400,000 (2002: nil) is received through the current
account with an associate.

39. Contingent Liabilities

THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2003 2002 2003 2002
HK$'000 HK$"000 HK$000 HKS'000
At the balance sheet date, the Group
and the Company had contingent
liabilities as follows:
Bills discounted with recourse 420,900 253,937 -
Guarantees given to bankers in respect
of banking facilities utilised by
subsidiaries - - 881,721 802,718
420,900 253,937 881,721 802,718

40. Pledge of Assets

At 31 March 2003, the Group has piedged land and buildings and investment properties with aggregate
carrying values of approximately HK$161,747,000 {2002: HK$164,666,000) and HK$18,300,000 (2002:
HK$24,000,000) respectively, as collateral for mortgage loans granted to the Group by certain banks.

in addition to trade receivables with insurance coverage of HK$6,980,000 (2002: HK$60,099,000),
mentioned in note 23 abave, inventories of HK$338,691,000 (2002: HK$198,280,000) were also pledged as
security for the revolving inventory financing facilities obtained from banks.

In addition, shares of certain subsidiaries were pledged as securities for revolving inventory financing
facilities abtained from banks.
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Related Party Transactions

{a) During the year, the Group had entered into the following significant transactions with an associate
of the Group:

2003 2002
HK$'000 HK$'000
Sales of frozen seafood (note i) 455,135 550,566
Purchases of frozen seafood (note i) 8,556 18,480
Administrative income (note ii) 7,199 12,000
Notes:
(i) Sales and purchases of frozen seafood were carried out at market price or, where no market price was

available, at cost plus a percentage profit mark-up.

(i) Administrative income were charged to an associate on a cost allocation basis.

(b} The associate also provides inventories and trade receivables as part of the security to a bank to
secure the banking facilities of HK$39,000,000 (2002: HK$342,000,000) granted to the Group. At 31
March 2003, facilities amounting to HK$nil (2002: HK$56,367,000) were utilised by the Group.
Including in the discounting advances drawn on trade receivables with insurance coverage is an
amount of HK$47,691,000 (2002: HK$31,870,000) which were drawn from discounting trade
receivables with insurance coverage of an associate of HK$52,990,000 (2002: HK$35,411,000).

Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries

Particulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries as at 31 March 2003 are as follows:

Place/ Proportion of nominal
country of value of issued copital
incorparation Issued and fully held by the attributable
or registration/ paid-up capitalf Company*/ to the Principal
Name operation contributed capital subsidiaries Group activities
% %
Alfiance Capital Enterprises Hong Kong/PRC COrdinary 100 63  Property holding
Limited HK$2
Aqua Foods (Qingdao) PRC (note a) Registered 100 100 Seafood processing
Co., Ltd. RMB§,340,000
Best Concept (Far East) Hong Kong Ordinary 100 100 Trading of frozen
Limited HK$2 seafood products
Bonaire Developments British Virgin Islands/ Ordinary 100 100 Property holding
Limited Hong Kong Us$1
Chasterton Group Limited British Virgin Islands/ Ordinary 100 100 Property holding
Hong Kong Us$1
Clamford Holding Limited British Virgin Islands/ Ordinary 100" 100 Investment holding
Hong Kong Us$
Concept China lnvestment Hong Kong/PRC Ordinary 100 63 Property holding
Limited HK$2
Conred Limited Hong Kong/PRC Ordinary 100 63  Property holding
HK$2
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42. Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries - Continued

Place/
country of

Proportion of nominal
value of issued capital

incorporation Issued and fully held by the attributable
or registration/ paid-up capital/ Company*/ to the Principal
Nome operotion contributed copito/ subsidiaries Group activities
% %
Davis Limited Hong Kong/PRC Ordinary 100 63 Property holding
HK$2
Fastact Group Limited British Virgin Islands/ Ordinary 100 100 Property holding
Hong Kong US$1
Glorious Ocean Limited Hong Kong Ordinary 100 100 Provision of treasury
' HK$2 and administrative
services
Heng Holdings {BVI) British Virgin Islandsf Ordinary 100 100 investment holding
Limited Hong Kong Us$1
Join Power Assets Limited British Virgin Islands/ Ordinary 100 100 Property holding
Hong Kong US$!
National Fish and Seafood Hong Kong Ordinary 100 60  Trading of frozen
Limited HK$2 seafood products
National Fish & Seafood USA Ordinary 60 60 Trading and
Ine. US$10,000 processing of
frozen seafood
products
New Millennium Group British Virgin Islandsf QOrdinary 100 63 Trading of frozen
Holdings Limited Hong Kong US$5,361,101 vegetable
Nouvelle Foods British Virgin Islands/ Ordinary 100 100 Trading of processed
International Limited Hong Kong US$1 seafood products
Ocean Kingdom Enterprises Hang Kong Ordinary 100 100 Trading of
Limited HK$2 frozen seafood
products
Pacific Andes Enterprises British Virgin Islands/ Ordinary 100 63 Trading of frozen
(BVI) Limited Worldwide US$1 seafood products
Pacific Andes Enterprises Hong Kong Ordinary HK$200 100 100 Provision of
(Hong Kong) Limited [note b) Non-voting and treasury
deferred administrative
HK$10,000,000 services
Pacific Andes Food Hong Kong Ordinary 100 63  Trading of frozen
(Hong Kong} Company HK$10,000 seafood products
Limited
Pacific Andes Foodstuff PRC ({note a) Registered 100 100 Inactive
Co,, Ltd. US$1,800,000
Pacific Andes {Holdings) Bermuda/Singapore Ordinary 63 63 Investment holding

Limited

$$98,059,000
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Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries = Continued

Name
Pacific Andes International
Holdings (BVI} Limited

Pacific Andes Treasury
Management Limited

Paco Beta Limited

Paco Gamma Limited

Parkmond Group
Limited

Pelican Food Limited

Qingdao Canning Foodstuff
Co. Ltd.

Rawley Trading Limited

Qingdao Yuxin Food Co.,
Ltd.

Rich Reward Assets Limited

Sevenseas Enterprises
Limited

Xinxing Foodstuffs
{Qingdao) Company
Limited

Place/

country of
incorporation
or registration/
operotion

British Virgin Istands/
Hong Kong

Hong Kong

British Virgin Islands/
Worldwide

British Virgin Islands/
Worldwide

British Virgin Islands/
Worldwide

British Virgin Islands/
Hong Kong

PRC (note g

British Virgin Islands/
USA

PRC (note aj

British Virgin Islands/
Hong Kong

British Virgin Islands/
Hong Kong

PRC (note a)

Issued ond fully
paid-up copital/
contributed capito!

Ordinary
Us$1

Ordinary
HK$10,000,000

QOrdinary
Us$1

Ordinary
US$1

Ordinary
US$1

Ordinary
Us$100

Registered
US$12,100,000

Ordinary
US$1

Registered
U5$300,000

Ordinary
US$1

Ordinary
Uss$1

Registered
US$910,000

Proportion of nominal
value of issued capital

held by the attributgble
Company*/ to the

subsidiaries Group
% %

100" 100

100 100

100 63

100 63

100 63

100 100

100 100

100 100

100 100

100 100

100 100

100 100

Principat
octivities

Investment holding

Provision of treasury
services

Trading of marine
fuel

Vessel holding

Trading of frozen
seafood
products

[nvestment
holding

Seafood processing

Property holding

Inactive

Property holding

Property holding

Seafood processing
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42. Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries ~ Continued

Notes:
(a) The subsidiaries are wholly foreign owned enterprises registered in the PRC.
(b) The non-voting deferred shares carry practically no rights to dividends nor receive notice of nor to attend or

vote at any general meeting of the relevant company nor to participate in any distribution on wind up.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the opinion of the directors, principally
affected the results of the year or constituted a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To give
details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding at the end of the year

43. Particulars of Principal Associates

Particulars of the Group's principal associates as at 31 March 2003 are as follows:

Forms of
business
Name structure
Global Research Group Inc. incorporated

Global Research Services Inc.  Incorporated

Helena Overseas Limited Incorporated

Attributable
proportion of nominal
value of issued

Place of registered capital

incorporation held by the Company

British Virgin 50%
Islands

British Virgin 50%
Islands

Republic of 20%
Cyprus

Principal activities

Investment
holding

Provision of
interactive
electronic data
base

Trading of
processed
seafood
products




FINANCIAL SUMMARY

RESULTS
Fifteen
months ended Yeor ended Year ended Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March
1999 2000 2001 2002 2003
HK8'000 HK5'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TURNOQVER 2,734,316 2,090,758 2,671,385 3,547,005 3,849,254
OPERATING PROFIT 44 431 59,764 79,892 107,718 123,510
SHARE OF RESULTS OF
ASSOCIATES - 5 479 2177 1.219
44 431 59,769 80,371 109,895 124,729
TAXATION (6,807) (5,682) (3,576) (3,721) {1,430)
PROFIT BEFORE MINORITY
INTERESTS 37,624 54,087 76,795 106,174 123,299
MINORITY INTERESTS {15,256) (18,893) (20,092) (26,046) (28,948)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 22,368 35,194 56,703 80,128 94,351

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

31.3.1999 31.3.2000 31.2.2001 31.3.2002 31.2.2003

HKS$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TOTAL ASSETS 1,711,200 1,711,956 1,823,218 2,336,060 2,383,769
TOTAL LIABILITIES (930,320) (916,509) (952,104) (1,391,353) (1,331,053)
780,880 795,447 871,114 944,707 1,052,716

MINORITY INTERESTS (229,606) (240,633) (237,274) (251,528) (268,616)
SHAREHOLDERS' FUND 551,274 554,814 633,840 693,179 784,100




NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Annual General Meeting of Pacific Andes International Holdings Limited (the
"Company”) will be held at the Dynasty Club, 7/F., South West Tower, Convention Plaza, Wanchai, Hong Kong, on
Wednesday, 17 September 2003 at 2:30 p.m. for the following purposes:

Ordinary Business

1. To receive and consider the audited consolidated financial statements and the directors' report and auditors’
-report for the year ended 31 March 2003.

2. To declare a final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2003.
3. To re-elect directors and to authorise the board of directors to fix their remuneration.

4, To re-appoint the auditors of the Company and to authorise the board of directors to fix their
remuneration.

Special Business

5, To consider and, if thought fit, pass the following resolutions as ordinary resolutions:
(A} "THAT:

(i subject to sub-paragraph (i} of this resolution, the exercise by the directors of the Company
during the Relevant Period of all the powers of the Company to allot, issue and deal with
additional shares in the capital of the Company and to make or grant offers, agreements and
options which require or might require the exercise of such powers either during or after the
Relevant Period, be and is hereby generally and unconditionally approved;

(ii) the aggregate nominal amount of share capital allotted or issued or agreed conditionally or
unconditionally to be allotted or issued (whether pursuant to an option or otherwise) by the
directors of the Company pursuant.to the approval in sub-paragraph (i) of this resolution,
otherwise than pursuant to a Rights Issue, or the exercise of subscription or conversion rights
under any warrants of the Company or any securities which are convertible into shares of the
Company, or any option scheme or similar arrangement for the time being adopted for the
grant or issue to employees of the Company and/or any of its subsidiaries of shares or rights
to acquire shares in the Company, or any scrip dividend scheme or similar arrangement
providing for the allotment of shares of the Company in lieu of the whole or any part of a
dividend of such shares in accordance with the bye-laws of the Company, shall not exceed
twenty per cent. of the aggregate nominal amount of the share capital of the Company in
issue on the date of this resolution, and the said approval shall be limited accordingly;

(iii) ~ for the purposes of this resolution:

“Relevant Period” means the period from the passing of this resolution until whichever is the
earliest of:

(a) the conclusion of the next annual general meeting of the Company;
(b) the expiration of the period within which the next annual general meeting of the
Company is required by the bye-laws of the Company or any applicable law to be

held; and

(c) the date upon which the authority set out in this resolution is revoked or varied by
an ordinary resolution of the Company in general meeting;




(B)  "THAT:

{iii)

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

"Rights Issue” means an offer of shares open for a period fixed by the directors of the
Company to holders of shares of the Company on the Register of Members on a fixed record
date in proportion to their then holdings of such shares (subject to such exclusions or other
arrangements as the directors of the Company may in their discretion deem necessary or
expedient in relation to fractional entitlements or having regard to any restriction or
obligations under the laws of any relevant jurisdiction or the requirements of any recognised
requlatory body or any stock exchange).”

subject to sub-paragraph (ii) of this resolution, the exercise by the directors of the Company
during the Relevant Period of all the powers of the Company to repurchase issued shares in
the capital of the Company and outstanding warrants to subscribe for shares in the capital of
the Company, and to make or grant offers, agreements and options which require or might
require the exercise of such powers either during or after the Relevant Period, subject to and
in accordance with all applicable laws and regulations and the bye-laws of the Company, be
and is hereby generally and unconditionally approved;

the aggregate nominal amount of the share capital and warrants to subscribe for shares
which the Company is authorised to repurchase pursuant to the approval in sub-paragraph (i)
of this resolution shall not exceed ten per cent. of the aggregate nominal amount of the
share capital of the Company in issue on the date of the passing of this resolution (in case
of repurchase(s) of issued shares), and ten per cent of the outstanding warrants of the
Company as at the date of the passing of this resolution (in case of repurchase(s) of
outstanding warrants), and the said approval shall be limited accordingly; and

for the purposes of this resolution:

“Relevant Period” means the period from the passing of this resolution until whichever is the
earliest of:

(a) the conclusion of the next annual general meeting of the Company;
(b) the expiration of the period within which the next annual general meeting of the
Company is required by the bye-laws of the Company or any applicable law to be

held; and

(c) the date upon which the authority set out in this resolution is revoked or varied by
an ordinary resolution of the Company in general meeting."

o) “THAT conditional upon resolution no. 5{A) and resolution no. 5(B) above being passed, the
aggregate nominal amount of the shares in the capital of the Company which are repurchased by
the Company under the authority granted to the directors of the Company as mentioned in

resoluti

on no. 5(B} above shall be added to the aggregate nominal amount of share capital that may

be allotted or issued or agreed conditionally or unconditionally to be allotted or issued by the
directors of the Company pursuant to resolution no. 5(A) above, provided that such amount so added
shall not exceed ten per cent. of the aggregate nominal amount of the share capital of the Company
in issue on the date of passing of this resolution.”

By Order of the Board
Cheng Nai Ming
Company Secretary

Hong Kong, 17 July 2003




NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notes:

(ii)

(iii)
(iv)

v)

A member entitied to attend and vote at the meeting convened by the above notice is entitled to appoint a proxy in respect of
the whole or any part of his holding of shares to attend and vote in his stead. A proxy need not be a member of the Company.

A form of proxy for the meeting is enclosed with this Annual Report. In order to be valid, the form of proxy must be deposited
at the Hong Kong Principal Office of the Company at Rooms 3201-15 Hong Kong Plaza, 188 Connaught Road West, Hong Kang
together with a power of attorney or other authority, if any, under which it is signed or a notarially certified copy of that
power of attorney or other authority not less than 48 hours before the time for holding the meeting or adjourned meeting (as
the case may be).

An explanatory statement containing further details regarding resolution 5 is enclosed with this Annual Report.

The Register of Members will be closed from Monday, 15 September 2003 to Wednesday, 17 September 2003, both days
inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares can be registered.

Registered and unregistered holders of warrants who wish to exercise their subscription rights to receive shares which will
gualify for the proposed final dividend must lodge the relevant warrant certificates together with the relevant instruments of
transfer and subscription forms duly completed and accompanied by the requisite subscription monies with the Company's
branch registrars in Hong Kong, Secretaries Limited of the G/F, BEA Harbour View Centre, 56 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong
Kong, for registration not later than 4:00 p.m. on Thursday, 11 September 2003.
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